
TRANSIT COMMISSION MINUTES 
 
Date and Time: The Transit Commission met on Thursday, November 19, 2015 at 1:30 P.M. at 

Metro Ride Office, 420 Plumer St., Wausau, WI. 
 
Members Present:            Sherri Abitz, Robert Mielke, Keith Draheim and Keene Winters 
                                          
Members Excused:          Txanj Hue Yang 
 
Also Present: Greg Seubert, Mary Foss 
 
 
In accordance with Chapter 19, Wisconsin Statutes, notice of this meeting was posted and sent to the 
Wausau Daily Herald in the proper manner.  The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Abitz after 
noting a quorum was present. 
 
Public Comment on Matters Appearing on the Agenda 
Chris Weems stated he was aware that the city’s budget passed and he was wondering where transit stands, 
because there isn’t much time left before the New Year.  He asked if the project could be started in the 
middle of the year. 
 
Kathi Zoern stated that a long term fix was necessary for transit, not just a one-year project. 
 
Winters arrived at 1:43 p.m. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Mielke moved to approve the minutes of the October 8, 2015 meeting.  Draheim seconded.  Motion carried. 
 
Financial Report/Budget 
Seubert presented a revenue and expense summary for the period ending September 30, 2015.  He said 
that with 75% of the year completed, revenues from ridership are at about 64% of budget, which reflects a 
ridership loss greater than projected.  He noted that some expense line items are over budget, such as bus 
parts.  He said that omissions system failures have been a problem on newer buses, and replacement parts 
are costly.   
 
Heckendorf confirmed that the newer technology requires parts that are more expensive.  He stated that 
although our maintenance program is proactive, we are experiencing issues that have not been foreseen.   
 
Seubert said that overall expenses are at about 65% of budget and he hoped that we would finish the year 
within the overall budget.   
 
No action was taken. 
 
Transit Service Pilot Project and Grant Request 
Seubert said that Winters has worked diligently meeting with various stakeholders to get this project moving 
forward.   Winters said he had two meetings hosted by the Wausau Community Foundation with various 
stakeholders.  At the last meeting they parceled out tasks.  The foundations are looking at taking applications 
that we must submit.  They have asked the county to divert the $10,000 for their study to the pilot program.  
He said they will be meeting with Rib Mountain and the Chamber somewhere around December 1.  They 
should have an answer between December 11th and the 18th.  Mielke asked if we would have enough time.  
Winters said it will be in 2016, but not sure what day.   
 
Seubert distributed a memo he prepared, which outlined issues relating to the pilot project.  He noted that 
several of the issues were presented to him by the Mayor and some were his own.  He said that if the pilot 
project is to determine the future of area-wide transit services, he didn’t want the project to be carried out 
poorly.  The memo noted the following: 
 



 2
1. We lack a sufficient number of vehicles to add two new routes.  Seubert said he was hopeful that 

used buses would become available soon, but he was uncomfortable moving forward without some 
expectation that we would have enough buses to operate the service. 

2. Delaying the project until March 1st, would reduce the evaluation period and insufficient data or low 
initial ridership may doom continued participation in 2017. 

3. Rothschild and Schofield have indicated an inability to afford their entire share for 2016.  Without a 
commitment from each party for 2017, we may be stuck paying unemployment expenses for 2017. 

4. If state/federal funds come in at less than predicted or fuel and parts expenses spike, Rothschild, 
Schofield and Rib Mountain will pay their fixed amount and Wausau will have to make up the 
difference.  WISDOT informed Seubert just days ago that they have lowered their funding projections 
for 2016.  Actual funding totals will not be known until the end of first quarter of next year. 

5. We are seeking funds to reduce the cost of services for other municipalities and not for the City of 
Wausau.  Seubert said that critics may assert that the City of Wausau has no business seeking 
funds on their behalf. 

6. State statues prohibit the provision of transit services across local boundaries without a cost sharing 
agreement in place.  The City has to certify in its 2016 grant application that local financial 
commitments are in place for the services described.  Seubert questioned whether there was 
sufficient time to formalize these commitments before the grant is submitted at years-end.   

 
Zoern asked if the County’s grant funds could run from July of 2016 through July 2017, instead of a calendar 
year so that we had time to get buses.   Mack said potentially yes, the County could do this if they chose to.  
Mielke asked how soon the County could make that decision.   Mack said they would need to know ASAP.  
Abitz stated that the County’s budget is very tight this year and next year will probably be worse.   
 
Draheim said that it makes the most sense to start the project in July so we get better data and a better bang 
for our buck.  It would also give us time to get buses and hire drivers.  Mielke questioned the likelihood that 
rural members of the County Board would be supportive of spreading funding over a two year period.  He 
also expressed concern that City of Wausau taxpayers may be stuck with additional costs. 
 
Winters left the meeting at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Mielke asked if we were allowed to do this legally.  Jacobsen said she doesn’t have a lot of background on 
this, so she could not give a definitive answer.  She said that it was unclear to her who was asking for the 
funds and what the responsibilities of the City of Wausau would be once they were received.  She said that 
the appropriate parties really need to be asking for the funds.  She said it was also important that we be able 
to carry out the project if we are seeking funds. 
 
Abitz agreed.  She said written agreements need to be in place from the foundations and communities.   She 
said that in order to do this properly, the correct parties should be applying for the grants. 
 
Mielke said that he gives a lot of credit to Winters and Seubert for all of their work, but he would like to hold 
off on this.  Seubert also commended Winters’ hard work and said that it was a big deal that important 
stakeholders were brought to the table.   
 
Seubert said that the project is important for the transit systems’ future, but the calendar is not our friend at 
this point.  He expressed disappointed that Winters had left the meeting and was not available to explain 
financial commitments made by the business community.  Seubert said that he was not aware of any firm 
commitments at this point.  He said that that he has to prepare a grant application and submitted it to the 
DOT by December 30th.  The application must describe the specifics of the service and financial 
commitments must be identified, but those specifics are not available at this time.  He said that the Mayor 
cannot sign the cover letter which certifies that local financial commitments are in place.  
 
Zoern asked about the need for public hearings.  Seubert said that grant applications can be submitted prior 
to holding public hearings, but a great deal of planning must occur before service can be initiated.  He said 
the he and Winters discussed a March 1st start date, which may allow sufficient time to work out such details. 
 



 3
Seubert said that he supports the overall goal of the project and he appreciates Winters’ hard work in 
moving it forward, but he doesn’t want it to fail.  He said that if we are going to do this, it has to be done 
successfully and sufficient data must be gathered to demonstrate its effectiveness.  He said that if we allow 
our desire to start the project to get ahead of our desired outcome, then it will be a problem for the future. 
Seubert stated that he did not view a delay in initiating the project as a failure, but rather the start of 
something we can build on. 
 
Abitz suggested that we hold off until we can do this right.  She said we don’t want this to fail.  She 
understands that riders are excited about this, but the commitment from surrounding communities needs to 
be longer than one year.  
 
Draheim said he supports everything but would rather have it take a year or so to get this done correctly.  He 
said that the one-year trial period is not a good idea.   
 
Mielke wanted to state for the record that he wished Mr. Winters hadn’t left, as we need to find out if the 
other communities are willing to submit grant applications. 
 
Mielke moved to reconsider the motion from the last meeting and table the issue for further study.  Draheim 
seconded.  Motion carried. 
 
Transit Director’s Report 
Seubert said that he was hoping to bid on some used buses from Duluth in January 2016.   
 
Seubert said that the recruitment process us underway for a part-time driver, a utility worker and a transit 
supervisor.    
 
Seubert reported that the Vehicle lift project is nearly completed.  He said that high groundwater has been a 
problem for the project, but remaining concrete work will be finished in Mid-December.   
 
The next meeting date was not determined.   
 
Mielke moved to adjourn the meeting. Draheim seconded.  Motion carried.  
 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Sherry Abitz, Chairperson  
mf 


